
 

1 of 2 
 

 
NOTICE OF CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, 
TEXAS, WILL MEET IN A WORKSHOP SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, February 24, 2015 

 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  City Council Workshop Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and any 
consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. Public comments are 
welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments will be received at a Workshop 
Meeting. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting 
to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 

 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Review and discuss a presentation by Kendig Keast Collaborative regarding an interim briefing on the 

Comprehensive Plan Update Project, and take action as necessary to direct staff. (Travis Tanner, Executive 
Director of Community Development) 
 

2. Review and discuss a presentation by Kilday Operating, LLC, regarding Campanile at Seabourne Creek, 
and take action as necessary to direct staff. (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community 
Development) 
 

3. Review and discuss City newsletter, and take action as necessary to direct staff.  (Angela Fritz, Executive 
Director Information Services) 
 

4. Review and discuss proposed Ordinance Amendment regarding fencing, and take action as necessary 
to direct staff. (William Benton, Councilor/Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney) 
 

5. Review and discuss proposed Ordinance Amendment regarding junked vehicles, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. (Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney) 
 

6. Adjournment. 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 24, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

1 Comprehensive Plan Interim Briefing 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss a presentation by Kendig Keast Collaborative regarding an interim briefing on the 
Comprehensive Plan Update Project, and take action as necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4  
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1787 – 08-05-14 
2. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 08-05-14 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney  
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Professional Services Agreement for the Comprehensive Plan (Project), approved under Resolution 
No. R-1787 on August 05, 2014, provides for an interim briefing to update City Council on the status of the 
Project.  At this time, the Project is approximately at the midpoint of its overall completion, with drafts of 
Chapter 1, Planning Context, and Chapter 2, Transportation, having been completed.  The Comprehensive 
Plan Advisory Committee (CPAC), consisting largely of Planning Commission members, was recently 
updated on the Project and provided their feedback to the consultant, Kendig Keast Collaborative (KKC), 
on February 18, 2015.  Christian Lentz of KKC will be providing the interim briefing to City Council. 
 





















































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 24, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Kilday Development – Campanile at Seabourne Creek Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss a presentation by Kilday Operating, LLC, regarding Campanile at Seabourne Creek, 
and take action as necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4  
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Kilday Correspondence – 01-23-15 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Preliminary Site Plan 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney  
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Les Kilday of Kilday Operating LLC has requested the opportunity to have a discussion with City Council 
regarding a proposed senior, multi-family development to be located off of Reese Road between I-69 and FM 
2218.  A vicinity map is attached for reference.  The property consists of approximately 9.8 acres for which 132 
units are proposed. 
 
As of the time of this report, only the attached preliminary site plan has been provided; a more detailed site plan 
would be required at a later time for staff to review.  The proposal would meet the City requirement of having no 
more than fourteen (14) units per acre.  However, it would not meet the multi-family parking requirement 
beginning at four (4) spaces per unit.  The “Multi-Family” Ordinance does not distinguish between parking for 
standard and senior multi-family developments likely because, absent a development agreement, the City 
cannot restrict the age of residents within a development; therefore there would likely have to be a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) agreement in place for the development to go forward.  Such an agreement would require a 
recommendation by the Planning Commission and approval by City Council.  It should also be noted that the 
property falls within the boundaries of the West Fort Bend Management District (District) and therefore would be 
subject to the District’s standards. 
 
For projects of this nature, it is generally the practice of City staff to review preliminary plans and determine in 
the early stages if there are any potentially major obstacles to development.  For this particular project, the 
developer has been notified in particular that they will be responsible for meeting drainage requirements, 
extending utilities to the site, and for providing a traffic impact analysis (TIA) to determine if the development 
warrants any off-site improvements. 
 
In the future, the developer will be requesting a resolution of support for the project from City Council and 
requests feedback from Council at this time.  The project was discussed with the Planning Commission on 
February 18, 2015.  The Commission generally had no objections to the project under the conditions outlined by 
the developer.  Commissioners directed City staff to bring the Development Agreement before the Commission 
when appropriate and to incorporate in the Agreement the specifications discussed by the developer.  This 
would be a “tax credit” project through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs, similar to 
Brazos Senior Villas located at 5801 Reading Road. 
 





!!

!!

!! !!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

REESE

DANZIGER

BRYAN

B F
 TE

RR
Y

BRYAN

@A2218

§̈¦£¤96 594§̈¦£¤96 594

PLEAK VILLAGE

SOUTHWEST FWYSOUTHWEST FWY

@A2218

Å

Û

N

S

EW
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
R62421

Lot 17 of the Danziger-Reese Subdivision
City of Rosenberg, Texas

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

1:9,000
1 inch = 750 feet

Scale:
or

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
Feet

The 2014 Aerial Imagery Data is the sole property of
Houston-Galveston Area Council, which reserves all rights
thereto.  Use or reproduction of this data is strictly prohibited
absent written consent from the Houston-Galveston
Area Council, which may be contacted at www.h-gac.com.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: February 05, 2015
Original Size: 8.5" x 11"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2015\Danziger_Reese_Subd_Lot_17.mxd





CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 24, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Newsletter Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss City newsletter, and take action as necessary to direct staff.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

101-1950-540-5410 
219-2000-540-5410 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:   MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Presentation – Print Publications 
2. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 09-30-14  

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
Angela Fritz 
Executive Director  
Information Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] Economic Development Director      
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] Project Director 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff will present information for City Council consideration regarding printing/publication options and 
ballpark cost estimates as they relate to the reconfiguration of the City’s printed newsletter. 
 



Newsletter Discussion
February 24, 2015 City Council Workshop



 Expand distribution beyond just utility bill 
recipients, to reach as many physical 
addresses in City as possible
 Based on initial estimate, roughly double 

distribution from 23% population, to 46% 
population

 Report on key strategic projects/goals to 
taxpayers at large

 Allow staff resources to be directed toward  
other community engagement initiatives and 
campaigns



 Review proposed distribution and associated 
estimated costs, and direct staff accordingly



 Quarterly distribution of an 8 pg. piece reporting 
on key strategic initiative, projects, and other 
pertinent information
 Frequency = X3
 March/April
 June/July
 September/October

 Annual distribution of a combined wall 
calendar/annual report piece
 Frequency = X1
 December/January 



 Free up space in utility bills to insert topic-
specific content, directly related to services 
being billed (water, wastewater, garbage)

 Separate piece direct-mailed will help increase 
awareness/sense of community across City

 Allows staff resources to be focused on providing 
quality, timely information in real time via most 
appropriate medium/s (utility bill, newsletter, 
website, press releases, social media, 
munichannel, etc.), while providing a quarterly 
“report card” of sorts on strategic goals, 
initiatives, and indicators



Tabloid Newsprint with
Glossy Calendar Letter Glossy (All)

 Quarterly Publication -
similar paper type to LCISD 
newsletter x3

 Annual Report/Calendar -
similar paper/size to Sugar 
Land newsletter x1

 Quarterly Publication -
similar paper type to Sugar 
Land newsletter x3

 Annual Report/Calendar -
similar paper/size to Sugar 
Land newsletter x1

Total Ballpark Cost (per year):
$54,000

Total Ballpark Cost (per year):
$62,500

Total Ballpark Cost (per recipient):
$3.26

Total Ballpark Cost (per resident):
$1.50

Total Ballpark Cost (per recipient):
$3.79

Total Ballpark Cost (per resident):
$1.74



 Review proposal/recommendation with RDC 
(historically, have provided 25% of NL 
funding)

 Finalize bid specifications, and go out for 
competitive bid on necessary services

 Finalize design/layout and begin formulation 
of first quarterly piece with goal of 
distributing no later than mid-April. 

 Finalize distribution/editorial calendar for 
planning purposes, and begin design/layout 
of annual calendar/report for Dec. 2015 
distribution.  



2. 

• 

• 

• 

RECESS SESSION, RECONVENE SESSION. 
Mayor Morales recessed the session at 8:00 p.m. and reconvened the Session at 8:10 p.m. 

REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY'S INSIDER NEWSLETTER, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO 
DIRECT STAFF . 
Executive Summary: This item has been included to allow for City Council discussion regarding the future 
publication and content of the Rosenberg Insider newsletter. 

Key discussion points: 
• Councilor Benton stated he has had people ask about the Newsletter. He asked staff to consider 

reinstituting the Newsletter. 
• Robert Gracia, City Manager asked Angela Fritz, Executive Director of Information Services to provide 

Council with an overview of what and why we are doing regarding the Newsletter. 
• Angela Fritz stated some general information was shared with Council why we had gone away from 

the monthly newsletter. We are not proposing doing away with the newsletter. We are proposing to 
change the way in which we distribute it and the ways we communicate overall. Shifting the 
newsletter from a monthly to a quarterly distribution is what we are investigating now. That would let 
us focus some of our resources and time on other communications in other processes to try to reach a 
more diverse populous in the City. 

• The main portion we are looking at is a plan for reinstituting it on a quarterly basis to get it physically in 
the hands of more people in the City. It is in the City's utility bill now which only goes to about 8,200 
people. We worked with Customer Service almost a year ago to add different communications 
medians and engage more of our community. Even within those we serve utilities to there is at least 
4,000 people that are in apartments, mobile homes, or somewhere they have a master meter and are 
not receiving a utility bill. We are looking at a way similar to what LCISD does with their quarterly 
report that goes out and it would be a separate mailer. That has a better read rate. It would be going 
to the entire geographic area not just our utility customers. 

• Our audiences are diversifying, growing and changing, and our utility audience and water customers 
do not necessarily equal our audience overall as a community anymore. It lets us diversify our 
offerings and utilize that space in the monthly newsletter to do targeted pieces toward those services, 
such as, water conservation, solid waste, street sweeping, leaves, and storm water pollution 
prevention. That is the broad context behind what we are trying to do. To do that we need some space 
to do that research to plan and come back with the quarterly numbers. That is what we are working 
on. 

• Councilor Benton stated he appreciates wanting to reach more people. He liked the aspect of the 
monthly newsletter. How many water bill customers do we have? 

• Angela Fritz stated apprOXimately 8,200 water bills are sent out each month. 
• Councilor McConathy stated it is still in the research stage about the content of that quarterly 

newsletter, is that correct? 
• Angela Fritz stated yes. The basic idea is that we deal with the day to day issues in a timelier manner. 

Unfortunately, the monthly newsletter although it went out monthly it is impossible for it to be timely 
due to the production, printing and insertion in the utility bills. The general idea is to shift the content to 
some of our broader strategiC goals to be able to talk about things in more depth like comprehensive 
planning and economic development. To deal with the day to day project updates, such as, town hall 
notifications, Eagle Scout projects at the parks as they happen through our press releases, the 
website and other tools we will be implementing in the coming year will be used. 

• Councilor McConathy suggested since the newsletter will be a tangible document one of the things to 
include would be common numbers that our citizens and business owners would need, such as, the 
Community Coordinator which is the central point of collecting a lot of inquiries, questions, complaints, 
compliments and the like. Not everybody has access to the Internet and if they did it is very 
cumbersome to find the information you need quickly. 

• Councilor Barta stated she has had some inquiries about it. Some citizens like it monthly and others 
don't mind receiving the newsletter quarterly. Are you looking at sending out 30,000 newsletters? Is it 
not feasible to continue the monthly until that is figured out? 

• Angela Fritz stated we see it as a quarterly update. Those are the measurable strategiC goals and 
things we set out as an organization, departments and things like that. It would be sent to Rosenberg 
properties. The goal is to blanket the geographic area that is covered by the City if we can financially. 
It is not feasible to continue the monthly newsletter. 

• Councilor Grigar stated after hearing the plan he thinks quarterly distribution is fine. He likes the idea it 
will go out to all properties and not just utility customers. There are people in our newly annexed areas 
that do not get a water bill. Reaching out to those people is very beneficial in keeping them in the loop 
of what is happening in Rosenberg. 

PAGE 4 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 

cynthias
Rectangle



• 

• 

• 

• Angela Fritz stated the other issue is that a lot of our residents have Richmond addresses. From a 
mailing standpoint you can't just select a zip code. She has been meeting with companies to get a 
strategy. The big question now is the dollar amount. That is why we are being conservative to find out 
what works. We would like to be able to do it with what we were doing before but there are a lot of 
variables. 

• Councilor Pena stated Angela Fritz does a good job and he knows whatever decision she comes up 
with will be something that has been studied. He talked to a lot of people that trash the newsletter. The 
majority do not read it. The cost for a quarterly newsletter makes more sense and it is going to the 
property owner. 

• Councilor Euton stated all her questions have been covered. 
• Councilor Benton asked what the cost is of the current water bill newsletter. 
• Angela Fritz stated currently is costs approximately $1,100 to print and the insertion fee is about one 

cent per insertion. That is approximately $1,200 per month and $14,000 to $15,000 per year. 
• Mayor Morales stated the general consensus of Council is for staff to bring the plan back. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PROPOSAL TO ADD 1.5 ACRES OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY TO 
COMMUNITY PARK, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: At the May 22, 2014 Parks and Recreation Board (Board) Meeting, staff reviewed and 
discussed a proposal to add 1.5 acres of adjacent City-owned property to Community Park. After a brief 
discussion, the Board unanimously recommended the addition of 1.5 acres of adjacent City-owned property to 
Community Park. 

Staff has placed this item on the Agenda to receive City Council's input on proceeding with the process of 
adding 1.5 acres of City-owned property to Community Park. 

Key discussion points: 
• Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director read the Executive Summary regarding the item. 
• A map was provided showing the 1.5 acres. The lot used for storage west of the park and the lot 

between 5th and 4th Streets addition would make Community Park a full six acres. The lot to the left of 
the park was used for material storage at one time. The other area has been open land. By adding the 
acreage it would be nice to put some trails into this park that would wind around those six acres. More 
trees would be planted to beautify the park. Staff is asking for permission to proceed with a title search 
to make 100% certain that the City does own those two pieces of property before we try to adopt them 
into the park. 

Questions/Comments: 
• Councilor Euton stated this would be a great addition to our park system and she gives her full 

cooperation to do the title search. 
• Councilor Pen a asked if this is the low side of that area. He thinks it is a good idea. 
• Darren McCarthy stated the part to the left to the west is the low side. The part that is between 5th and 

4th Streets is on the higher side across from Jackson Elementary. 
• Councilor Grigar stated it is an excellent idea. On the extension of 3rd Street north of Avenue A and 4th 

Street and 5tn Street south of Avenue A, are those designated as streets the City owns or could that 
be put in parcels instead of right of ways? Would we be obligated to extend those streets one day? 

• Travis Tanner stated staff would have to investigate it to see if there are any issues with abandoning 
the right of way. We need to make sure there are no utilities in there. Often allies will have utilities but 
it doesn't mean that can't be overcome. We will have to look at it on a case by case basis. 

• Councilor Grigar stated it would make it cleaner as a contiguous piece of property. 
• Darren McCarthy stated as part of the title search we could call 811 to locate the utilities to make sure 

there is nothing in the way before it comes back to Council for adoption. 
• Councilor Barta stated the area is used a lot and Whatever we can do to enhance it would be great. 
• Councilor Benton stated you are not suggesting purchasing anymore property, right? We assume this 

is all City property and maintained. He was looking at the potential marketability of the 5th Street lot. If 
there was interest somebody would have made the City an offer. 

• Darren McCarthy stated no. We are not 100% certain and that is why staff is recommending the title 
search. It has been maintained as City owned property. 

• Councilor McConathy asked if the parcel on the west side of the park is being considered for public 
access to the river as part of the Brazos River Plan. 

• Darren McCarthy stated not necessarily. That would be a good parking spot to load and unload 
kayaks and canoes. The river access runs the road. The road curves around the playground and goes 
toward the river and the launch site. This parcel would not be access to that. It is accessed through 

PAGE 5 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 

cynthias
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 24, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 “Fence” Ordinance Amendment Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss proposed Ordinance Amendment regarding fencing, and take action as necessary to 
direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1.  Proposed Amendment to “Fence” Ordinance 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

William Benton/rl 

William Benton 
Councilor, At Large Position 
One 
 
Scott Tschirhart/rl 
 
Scott Tschirhart 
City Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Agenda item has been included to allow for City Council discussion regarding fencing regulations and 
requirements.  A draft Ordinance Amendment has been prepared for review and discussion. 
 
Staff is seeking direction from City Council regarding the proposed Amendment. 
 



 

Page 1 of 5  

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-__ 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 6 BUILDINGS 
AND BUILDING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE XIV. RESERVED, ESTABLISHING 
PERMIT REQUIREMENTS; ESTABLISHING RESTRICTIONS ON FENCES ON 
PUBLIC PROPERTY; ESTABLISHING LOCATION AND HEIGHT 
RESTRICTIONS; ESTABLISHING APPROVED FENCING MATERIALS; 
ESTABLISHING REQUIREMENTS FOR FENCE MAINTENANCE; 
ESTABLISHING FENCE RESTRICTIONS; ESTABLISHING REQUIREMENTS 
FOR DILAPIDATED FENCE REMEDIATION; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg is a home rule City acting under it home rule Charter 

and the law of the State of Texas; and,  
 

WHEREAS, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code Chapter 211 authorizes the City of Rosenberg to 
adopt rules and regulations regarding land use within the City limits of the City of Rosenberg 
for the purpose of promoting the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the City; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it necessary to establish the provisions of this 
ordinance regarding the regulation of fences; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it would be advantageous and beneficial to the 
citizens of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, to adopt this ordinance regulating the requirements 
for fences within the City of Rosenberg; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that it is 
in the best interest of the public and in support of the health, safety, morals, and general welfare 
of the citizens of the City that the Building Code regulations relative to fencing requirements be 
established as hereinafter stated;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS THAT:  
 
 Section 1. Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 

correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council, and are hereby approved and 

incorporated into the body of the Building Code as if copied in their entirety.  

Section 2. Amending Building Code.  That Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6 Building 

and Building Regulations is hereby amended by creating Article XIV. Fences to hereinafter 

read as follows: 

  



 

Page 2 of 5  

  
“Sec. 6-390. - Fence Requirements and Prohibitions.  

 
                                               

a. Permit:  A fence permit shall be required to erect or replace a fence, but 
not to repair an existing one. The following shall be submitted for a fence 
permit to be issued:  

  
1. Building Permit Application  
  
2. One (1) site plans showing the location of the fence and any and all 

easements on the property  
  
3. Description of materials to be used  

  
b. Public Property:  A fence or any part of a fence shall not be constructed 

upon or allowed to protrude over a property line or lot line.  All fences must 
be maintained so as not to overhang or interfere with public property.  

  
c. Location and Height Restrictions:  No fence shall be constructed at a height 

exceeding the following:  
 

1. Rear Yard:   No fence shall be constructed at a height exceeding 
eight (8) feet along the rear yard or alley line.    

  
2. Front Yard:  No fence shall be constructed at a height exceeding 

four (4) feet along the front building line to the parkway or parallel 
with the street line.    

 
a) All stockade or picket fences which do not maintain fifty (50%) 

percent visibility are prohibited in the front yard.   
  
b) No fence shall be permitted to be closer than ten (10) feet from 

the curb or the front property line, whichever is more 
restrictive.  

 
3. No  fence  shall  be  located  within  any  easement  except  by  prior  

written approval of those agencies having interest in such easement  
  

4. Side Yard: No fence shall be constructed at a height exceeding eight 
(8) feet on any side yard line up to the building line of the property.  

  
5. Decorative Ornamental Iron Fencing may be constructed up to six 

(6) feet in height only on lots exceeding one acre in area between 
the front building line and the front property line. No fence shall 
be constructed which does not have at least seventy-five (75%) 
percent visibility or which interferes with traffic line of sight.  
  

d. Approved Fencing Materials:  Fences shall be constructed of wooden 



 

Page 3 of 5  

fence panels, vinyl, masonry, wrought iron, decorative metal, and chain 
link. Any other type of material will require approval from the Building 
Official when submitting the permit application.  

  

e. Security Fences:  For all properties that are for commercial use or on public 
property which requires protection from vandalism may construct a 
fence with barbed wire arms extending outward. No such barbed wire 
arm shall extend outward over the property line. Fence arms with barbed 
wire shall not be allowed on fences that are less than six (6) feet in height.  

  
f. Fence Maintenance:  All fences shall comply and be maintained in 

accordance with all the requirements of this ordinance at all times.   
 

1. Fences  shall  not  be  more  than  twenty  (20%)  percent  out  of  
vertical alignment.  

  
2. Damaged, removed, or missing portions of a fence shall be 

replaced or repaired with comparable materials to the remaining 
portion.  

  
3. The owner of any fence, existing or new, shall be responsible for the 

removal of any and all graffiti.  
  
4. Any and all vegetation shall be kept clear of fences and shall not be 

allowed to grow into a fence.  
 

g. Fence Restrictions:  
  

1. Obstructions prohibited. No fence, screen, free standing wall or 
other visual barrier shall be so located or placed that it obstructs 
the vision of a motor vehicle driver approaching any street, alley, 
or drive intersection. All fences constructed at street intersections 
shall maintain a twenty-five (25) feet visual barrier from the property 
corner along the street line.  

  
2. Barbed Wire Fences prohibited. Fences shall not be constructed of 

barbed wire and walls shall not be topped with broken glass or 
surfaced with any like material.  

  
3. Electrical Fences prohibited. No fence shall be electronically 

charged in any form or fashion, except single-strand wires designed 
to conduct electricity through an approved low-voltage regulator shall 
be allowed along the fence’s interior for the purposes of securing 
pets within a fenced yard.  



 

Page 4 of 5  

 
   
  
 
j. Dilapidated Fences:  Should a fence be deemed dilapidated or substandard by 

the Code Enforcement Officer, then the following shall occur:  
 

1. A  notice  shall  be  served  to  the  property  owner  informing  of  the  
fence violation.  

  
2. Should the violations not be corrected by the owner within a ten (10) 

day time period, the City may remove the fence at its own expense and 
the cost shall be charged against the land and become a personal 
obligation of the owner.  The provisions for notice, hearing and appeal 
shall be conducted in compliance with provisions of Chapter 6 of the Code 
of Ordinances.” 

 

Section 3. Penalty.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions 

of this Ordinance, as amended, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof 

shall be fined in a sum not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00). Each and every day 

such violation continues shall constitute a separate offense and shall be punishable as such.  

Section 4. Cumulative and Conflicts. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all 

provisions of ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, except where the provisions of the 

Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the 

conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed. Any and all previous versions 

of this Ordinance to the extent that they are in conflict herewith are repealed. 

Section 5. Severability.  In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part 

of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall 

not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other 

than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 

notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, 



 

Page 5 of 5  

whether there be one or more parts. 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “nays” 

against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 of 

the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of ________________ 2015. 

  
  
  
ATTEST:      CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS  
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 24, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 “Junked Vehicle” Ordinance Amendment Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discus proposed Ordinance Amendment regarding junked vehicles, and take action as 
necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Exhibit “A” of Proposed Ordinance Amendment - Redlined 
2. Proposed Ordinance Amendment 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-27-15  

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Scott Tschirhart/rl 
 
Scott Tschirhart 
City Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached draft “Junked Vehicles” Ordinance has been prepared as requested by City Council at the 
January 27, 2015 Workshop Meeting. 
 
Should City Council approve the Amendment, an Ordinance adopting revised regulations for junked 
vehicles will be presented for consideration on a future Agenda. 
 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 1 of 8 

 

ROSENBERG CODE OF ORDINANCES EXCERPT 
CHAPTER 14 – HEALTH, SANITATION AND NUISANCES 
ARTICLE VI. - JUNKED VEHICLES         
 
Sec. 14-111. - Definitions.  
 

For the purpose of this article, the following words shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them by this section:  

 
Antique motor vehicle shall mean a passenger car or truck that is at least thirty-five 

(35) years old.  
 
Code Officer means the Code Enforcement Officer of the City or other regularly 

salaried, full-time employee of the City working under the supervision of the Chief of 
Police to enforce this article. 

 
Inoperable means a vehicle that is in such condition at the time of inspection, that it 

is no longer usable for the purpose for which it was manufactured, regardless of the 
potential for repair or restoration. If the vehicle is wrecked, dismantled or partially 
dismantled it is presumed to be inoperable. 

 
Junked vehicle shall mean a vehicle that is self-propelled as defined in Section 

683.071, Transportation Code, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes, as amended, and:  
 
(1) Does not have lawfully attached to it: 

 
a. An unexpired license plate; or 
b. A valid motor vehicle inspection certificate; or 
 

(2) Is wrecked, dismantled or partially dismantled, or discarded; or 
 

(3) Is inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than: 
 

a. Seventy-two (72)Twenty-four (24) consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on 
public property; or 

b. Thirty (30)Fifteen (15) consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property. 
 

Motor vehicle collector shall mean a person who:  
 
(1) Owns one (1) or more antique or special interest vehicles; and 

 
(2) Acquires, collects, or disposes of antique or special interest vehicle or part of an 

antique or special interest vehicle for personal use to restore and preserve an 
antique or special interest vehicle for historic interest.  

 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 
Special interest vehicle shall mean a motor vehicle of any age that has not been 

changed from original manufacturer's specifications and, because of its historic interest, 
is being preserved by a hobbyist. 

 
Sec. 14-112. - Exceptions.  Deemed public nuisance; declared unlawful. 
 

A junked vehicle that is located in a place where it is visible from a public place 
or public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the general public, tends 
to reduce the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates fire hazards, constitutes 
an attractive nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, and is 
detrimental to the economic welfare of the city by producing urban blight which is adverse 
to the maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is declared a public 
nuisance. 

The provisions of this article applicable to junked motor vehicles shall not apply to:  
 
(1) Any motor vehicle in operable condition specifically adapted or constructed for 

racing or operation on privately owned drag strips or raceways;  
 

(2) Any motor vehicle stored as the property of a member of the armed forces of the 
United States who is on active duty assignment.  

 
Sec. 14-113. -– Deemed public nuisance; declared unlawful.Exceptions.  
 

A junked vehicle that is located in a place where it is visible from a public place or 
public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the general public, tends to 
reduce the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates fire hazards, constitutes 
an attractive nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, and is 
detrimental to the economic welfare of the city by producing urban blight adverse to the 
maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is a public nuisance. This 
section shall not apply with regard toThe following vehicles or parts thereof are excepted 
from the provisions of this ordinance:  

 
(1) A vehicle or vehicle part thereof which is completely enclosed within a 

building in a lawful manner where it is not visible from the street or other 
public or private property;  

 
(2) A vehicle or part thereof which is stored or parked in a lawful manner on 

private property in connection with a business of a licensed vehicle dealer 
or licensed junkyard, or that is an antique or special interest vehicle stored 
by a motor vehicle collector on the collector's property, if the vehicle or part 
and the outdoor storage area, if any, are:  

(2)  
a. Maintained in an orderly manner; 
b. Not a health hazard; and 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 3 of 8 

 

c. Screened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, including 
a fence, rapidly growing trees, or shrubbery. 

 
(3) Any motor vehicle stored as the property of a member of the armed forces 

of the United States who is on active duty assignment.   
 

Sec. 14-114. - Notice to owner to abate nuisance—When on occupied premises 
Offense.  
 

 (a) Whenever a public nuisance exists on public property, on occupied 
premises, or on the public right-of-way adjacent to occupied premises within 
the city in violation of section 14-113, the city manager or his designee shall 
send notice to the owner of the junked vehicle and the owner or occupant 
of the premises where the nuisance exists if on private property, or the 
owner or occupant of the premises adjacent to the public right-of-way on 
which the nuisance exists. If the post office address of the last known 
registered owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be placed on the 
nuisance or, if the owner is located, hand delivered. The notice shall state 
the following:  

 
(1) The nature of the public nuisance and location; 
 
(2) That it must be abated and removed within ten (10) days; 
 
(3) That if a hearing is desired before the removal of that vehicle or vehicle part, 

a request for such hearing shall be made before the expiration of the ten-
day period; and  

 
(4) That the owner shall request, either in person or in writing, the clerk of the 

municipal court to set a date and time of hearing.  
 
(1) (b) The notice must be mailed, by certified mail with a five-day return 

requested, to the last known registered owner of the junked motor vehicle, 
any lienholder of record, and the owner or occupant of the private property, 
public property, or public right-of-way on which the public nuisance exists. 
If any notice is returned undelivered by the United States Post Office, official 
action to abate the nuisance shall be continued to a date not earlier than 
the 11th day after the date of return.A person commits an offense if the 
person maintains a public nuisance as described by this Article. 

(2) An offense under this article is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to 
exceed two hundred dollars ($200.00). Each day a violation is permitted to 
exist shall constitute a separate offense. 

(3) The municipal court shall order abatement and removal of the nuisance on 
conviction.  

 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 4 of 8 

 

Sec. 14-115. - Procedures for abating nuisanceSame—When on unoccupied 
premises.  
 

The city's procedures for the abatement and removal of a junked vehicle or a part of 
a junked vehicle as a public nuisance from private property, public property or public 
rights-of-way are set out in this section. 

 
(1) Procedures for abatement and removal of a public nuisance may be 

administered by the Code Enforcement Officer, or another regularly salaried, 
full-time employee of the City of Rosenberg designated by the City Manager 
to enforce this Article, except that any authorized person may remove the 
nuisance. 
 

(2) Pursuant to the procedures established by this section, the person 
authorized to administer these procedures may enter private property to 
examine a public nuisance, to obtain information to identify the nuisance, 
and to remove or direct the removal of the nuisance. 

 
(3) The municipal court may issue necessary orders to enforce an action taken 

by the Code Officer, under this section, pursuant to Tex. Transp. Code Ann. 
§ 683.074. 

 
(4) Once a proceeding for the abatement and removal of the public nuisance 

has commenced under this section, the relocation of a junked vehicle that 
is a public nuisance to another location within the City has no effect on the 
proceeding if the junked vehicle constitutes a public nuisance at the new 
location. 

 
(5) In the event that the City removes a junked vehicle from private or public 

property pursuant to this section, the Code Officer shall provide notice to the 
Texas Department of Transportation, identifying the vehicle or part of the 
vehicle being removed, not later than the fifth day after the date of removal. 

 
(6) A junked vehicle removed pursuant to the provisions of this section may not 

be reconstructed or made operable after removal. 
(a) Whenever a public nuisance exists on unoccupied premises or on the public 
right-of-way adjacent to the unoccupied premises within the city in violation of 
section 14-113, and the owner can be found, the city manager or his designee 
shall send notice to the owner of the junked vehicle and the owner of the 
unoccupied premises where the nuisance exists if on private property, or the 
owner of the unoccupied premises adjacent to the public right-of-way on which 
the nuisance exists. If the post office address of the last known registered owner 
of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be placed on the nuisance or, if the owner 
is located, hand delivered. The notice shall state the following:  
 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 5 of 8 

 

(1) The nature of the public nuisance and location; 
 
(2) That it must be abated and removed within ten (10) days; 
 
(3) That if a hearing is desired before the removal of that vehicle or vehicle part, 
a request for such hearing shall be made before expiration of the ten-day period; 
and  
 
(4) That the owner shall request, either in person or writing, the clerk of the 
municipal court to set a date and time of hearing. 
 

 
(b) The notice must be mailed, by certified mail with a five-day return requested, 
to the last known registered owner of the junked motor vehicle, any lienholder of 
record, and the owner of the unoccupied private property, or public property, or 
public right-of-way on which the public nuisance exists. If any notice is returned 
undelivered by the United States Post Office, official action to abate the nuisance 
shall be continued to a date not earlier than the 11th day after the date of return. 
 

Sec. 14-116. -– Motor vehicle description Notice of nuisance.  
 

The Code Officer shall give not less than 10 days, before an abatement action, 
written notice stating the nature of the public nuisance.  The notice must be personally 
delivered, sent by certified mail with a five-day return requested, or delivered by the United 
States Postal Service with signature confirmation service to: 

 
(1) the last known registered owner of the nuisance; 

 
(2) each lienholder of record of the nuisance; and 

 
(3)  the owner or occupant of: 

 
a. the property on which the nuisance is located; or 
b. if the nuisance is located on a public right-of-way, the property 

adjacent to the right-of-way. 
 
(4) Any notice requiring the removal of a vehicle or part thereof shall include a 

description of the vehicle and the correct identification number of the 
vehicle, if available at the site. 

 
a. The notice must state: 

 
i. that the nuisance must be abated and removed not 

later than the 10th day after the date on which the 
notice was personally delivered or mailed; and 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 
ii. any request for a hearing before the Municipal Court 

must be made before the 10th day after the date on 
which the notice was personally delivered, or mailed. 

 
iii. If the post office address of the last known registered 

owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be 
placed on the nuisance or, if the owner is located, 
personally delivered. 

 
iv. If notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the 

nuisance shall be continued to a date not earlier than 
the 11th day after the date of the return. 

Any notice requiring the removal of a vehicle or part thereof shall include a description 
of the vehicle and the correct identification number of the vehicle, if available at the site.  

 
Sec. 14-117. - Hearing in municipal court—Preliminaries.  
 

(1) A citation may be issued and a complaint may be filed in the Municipal 
Court of the City of Rosenberg for the violation of maintaining a public 
nuisance, if the nuisance is not removed and abated and a hearing is not 
requested within the ten (10) day period provided in Subsection 14-116. 

   
(2) The Municipal Court Judge shall conduct a hearing pursuant to Texas 

Transportation Code Section 683.075(a)(3), not earlier than the 11th day 
after the date of the service of notice. 

 
(3) At the hearing, the junked motor vehicle is presumed, unless demonstrated 

otherwise by the owner, to be inoperable. 
 

(4) If the information is available at the location of the nuisance, an order 
requiring removal of the nuisance must include the vehicle's: 

 
a. description; 
b. vehicle identification number; and 
c. license plate number. 

If a hearing is requested within ten (10) days after service of the notice, a public 
hearing shall be held not earlier than the 11th day after the date of the service of notice 
before the vehicle or vehicle part is removed. The hearing shall be held before the 
municipal judge.  

 
Sec. 14-118. -– Same—Findings of judge; penaltyDisposal of junked vehicles.  
 

(1) A junked vehicle or part thereof may be disposed of by removal to a 
scrapyard, a motor vehicle demolisher, or any suitable site operated by the 
City, for processing as scrap or salvage pursuant to authority provided in 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 7 of 8 

 

the Texas Transportation Code, § 683.078 or any successor statute for 
junked vehicle disposal. 

 
(2) Any proceeds from the transfer of the junked vehicle or part thereof to the 

site authorized by this section shall be used to reimburse the city for all 
costs incurred in the notification, investigation, hearing, and disposal 
procedures (including any and all variable towing and disposal fees from 
contracted sources) within this article. Any remaining proceeds shall be 
transferred to the lienholder of record or, if none, the owner of record. 

(a) The municipal judge shall conduct the trial brought before the municipal court and 
shall determine whether the defendant is in violation of section 14-113. Upon 
finding that the defendant is in violation of such section, the defendant shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and subject to a fine in accordance with section 
683.073 of the Texas Transportation Code. The municipal judge shall further order 
such defendant to remove and abate such nuisance within ten (10) days. If the 
defendant shall fail and refuse to abate or remove the nuisance, the municipal 
judge may issue an order directing the city manager or his designee to have the 
same removed, and the city manager or his designee shall take possession of the 
junked vehicle and remove it from the premises. The city manager or his designee 
shall thereafter dispose of the junked vehicle in such manner as the city council 
may provide.  

 
(b) If a trial is not requested within the ten-day period and the nuisance is not removed 

and abated by the persons notified, the municipal judge shall issue an order 
directing the city manager or his designee to have the same removed, and the city 
manager or his designee shall take possession of the junked motor vehicle and 
remove it from the premises. The city manager or his designee shall, thereafter, 
dispose of the junked motor vehicle in such manner as the city council may 
provide.  

 
 
Sec. 14-119. -– Removal—With the permission of the ownerEffect of act on other 
laws.  
 

Nothing in this Article shall affect laws that permit immediate removal of a vehicle left 
on public property which constitutes an obstruction to traffic, or laws that establish 
procedures for taking possession of abandoned motor vehicles.If, within ten (10) days 
after receipt of notice from the city manager or his designee to abate the nuisance as 
herein provided, the owner of the junked motor vehicle or owner or occupant of the 
premises shall give his written permission to the city manager or his designee for removal 
of the junked motor vehicle from the premises, the giving of such permission shall be 
considered compliance with the provisions of this article.  

 
Sec. 14-120. -– Same—From public property, occupied or unoccupied premises 
by court orderRemoval – With the permission of the owner.  
 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 8 of 8 

 

If, within ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the Code Enforcement Officer to 
abate the nuisance as herein provided, the owner of the junked motor vehicle or owner 
or occupant of the premises shall give his written permission to the City for removal of 
the junked motor vehicle from the premises, the giving of such permission shall be 
considered compliance with the provisions of this article. 

If there is a junked motor vehicle on public property, or private premises that are 
occupied or unoccupied, or on the public right-of-way adjacent to the occupied or 
unoccupied premises, and the owner or occupant of the premises cannot be found and 
notified to remove the vehicle, then, upon a showing of facts to the municipal judge, the 
court may issue an order to the city manager or his designee to take possession of the 
junked motor vehicle and remove it. If the notice required in sections 14-114 and 14-115 
is returned undelivered by the United States Post Office, then after ten (10) days from the 
date of return, the court may issue an order to the city manager or his designee to have 
the junked motor vehicle removed, and the city manager or his designee shall take 
possession of the vehicle and remove it. The city manager or his designee shall thereafter 
dispose of the junked motor vehicle in the manner provided by the city council, consistent 
with state law, and the vehicle shall not be reconstructed or made operable.  

 
Sec. 14-121. - Disposal of junked vehicle.  
 

(a) If a public nuisance is not abated by the owner or occupant after notice is given in 
accordance with this article, official action shall be taken by the city to abate such 
nuisance. Junked vehicles or parts thereof may be disposed of by removal to a 
scrapyard, demolishers, or any suitable site operated by the city, which removal 
process shall be consistent with this article. A junked vehicle disposed of to a 
demolisher in accordance with this article must be transferred to such demolisher 
by a form acceptable to the state highway department. The transfer receipt must 
be listed on the demolisher's inventory list and surrendered to the state highway 
department in lieu of the certificate of title under the provision of the Texas 
Transportation Code, chapter 501.  
 

(b) After a vehicle has been removed pursuant to this article, it shall not be 
reconstructed or made operable by any person.  

 
(c) Notice shall be given to the state highway department within five (5) days after the 

date of removal identifying the vehicle or part thereof.  
 
Sec. 14-122. - Authority to enforce.  
 

The chief of police or his designee may enter upon private property for the purposes 
specified in this article to examine vehicles or parts thereof and to remove or cause the 
removal of a vehicle or parts thereof declared to be a nuisance pursuant to this article. 
The municipal court shall have authority to issue all orders necessary to enforce such 
article.  

 
Secs. 14-123—14-135. - Reserved.  



 

-1- 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2015-__ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 14 – HEALTH, 
SANITATION AND NUISANCES, ARTICLE VI – JUNKED VEHICLES OF 
THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; 
PROVIDING FOR A CUMULATIVE AND CONFLICTS CLAUSE, 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg in accordance with its inherent authority as a 
home rule city, and the authorization of Texas statutes, including but not limited to Texas 
Transportation Code Chapter 683, Subchapter E, is authorized to regulate junked 
vehicles; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council finds that the presence of junked vehicles in the City of 
Rosenberg is detrimental to the health, safety and welfare and reasonable comfort of its 
citizens; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council finds that in the absence of corrective measures, junked 
vehicles may a cause a deterioration of property values; a curtailment in investment and 
tax revenue; and an impairment of economic values in the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, City Council finds that it is necessary to amend the City’s regulations 
relating to the storing of junked vehicles within the City’s corporate limits to better protect 
the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of the City;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 

correct and are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as findings of fact.  

 Section 2. Code Amended.  Chapter 14, Article VI of the City of Rosenberg 

Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by replacing the existing language in Sections 

14-111 to 14-122 in its entirety with the language set out in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

and incorporated for all purposes herein. 



 

-2- 

 Section 3. Cumulative and Conflicts.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all 

provisions of ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, except where the provisions of 

the Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event 

the conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed. Any and all previous 

versions of this Ordinance to the extent that they are in conflict herewith are repealed.  

 Section 4. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City 

Council that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance 

are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court 

of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining 

phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 

would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance 

of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  

 Section 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately 

upon its passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

________________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS  
 
 
__________________________   _________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 



 

-3- 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 1 of 5 

 

ROSENBERG CODE OF ORDINANCES EXCERPT 
CHAPTER 14 – HEALTH, SANITATION AND NUISANCES 
ARTICLE VI. - JUNKED VEHICLES         
 
Sec. 14-111. - Definitions.  
 

For the purpose of this article, the following words shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them by this section:  

 
Antique motor vehicle shall mean a passenger car or truck that is at least thirty-five 

(35) years old.  
 
Code Officer means the Code Enforcement Officer of the City or other regularly 

salaried, full-time employee of the City working under the supervision of the Chief of 
Police to enforce this article. 

 
Inoperable means a vehicle that is in such condition at the time of inspection, that it 

is no longer usable for the purpose for which it was manufactured, regardless of the 
potential for repair or restoration. If the vehicle is wrecked, dismantled or partially 
dismantled it is presumed to be inoperable. 

 
Junked vehicle shall mean a vehicle that is self-propelled as defined in Section 

683.071, Transportation Code, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes, as amended, and:  
 
(1) Does not have lawfully attached to it: 

 
a. An unexpired license plate; or 
b. A valid motor vehicle inspection certificate; or 
 

(2) Is wrecked, dismantled or partially dismantled, or discarded; or 
 

(3) Is inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than: 
 

a. Twenty-four (24) consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; or 
b. Fifteen (15) consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property. 
 

Motor vehicle collector shall mean a person who:  
 
(1) Owns one (1) or more antique or special interest vehicles; and 

 
(2) Acquires, collects, or disposes of antique or special interest vehicle or part of an 

antique or special interest vehicle for personal use to restore and preserve an 
antique or special interest vehicle for historic interest.  

 

 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Special interest vehicle shall mean a motor vehicle of any age that has not been 
changed from original manufacturer's specifications and, because of its historic interest, 
is being preserved by a hobbyist. 

 
Sec. 14-112. -  Deemed public nuisance; declared unlawful. 
 

A junked vehicle that is located in a place where it is visible from a public place 
or public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the general public, tends 
to reduce the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates fire hazards, constitutes 
an attractive nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, and is 
detrimental to the economic welfare of the city by producing urban blight which is adverse 
to the maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is declared a public 
nuisance. 
 
Sec. 14-113. – Exceptions.  
 

The following vehicles or parts thereof are excepted from the provisions of this 
ordinance:  

 
(1) A vehicle or vehicle part which is completely enclosed within a building in a 

lawful manner where it is not visible from the street or other public or private 
property;  

 
(2) A vehicle or part thereof which is stored or parked in a lawful manner on 

private property in connection with a business of a licensed vehicle dealer 
or licensed junkyard, or that is an antique or special interest vehicle stored 
by a motor vehicle collector on the collector's property, if the vehicle or part 
and the outdoor storage area, if any, are:  
a. Maintained in an orderly manner; 
b. Not a health hazard; and 
c. Screened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, including 

a fence, rapidly growing trees, or shrubbery. 
 

(3) Any motor vehicle stored as the property of a member of the armed forces 
of the United States who is on active duty assignment.  

 
Sec. 14-114. - Offense.  
 

(1) A person commits an offense if the person maintains a public nuisance as 
described by this Article. 

(2) An offense under this article is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to 
exceed two hundred dollars ($200.00). Each day a violation is permitted to 
exist shall constitute a separate offense. 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 3 of 5 

 

(3) The municipal court shall order abatement and removal of the nuisance on 
conviction. 

 
Sec. 14-115. - Procedures for abating nuisance.  
 

The city's procedures for the abatement and removal of a junked vehicle or a part of 
a junked vehicle as a public nuisance from private property, public property or public 
rights-of-way are set out in this section. 

 
(1) Procedures for abatement and removal of a public nuisance may be 

administered by the Code Enforcement Officer, or another regularly salaried, 
full-time employee of the City of Rosenberg designated by the City Manager 
to enforce this Article, except that any authorized person may remove the 
nuisance. 
 

(2) Pursuant to the procedures established by this section, the person 
authorized to administer these procedures may enter private property to 
examine a public nuisance, to obtain information to identify the nuisance, 
and to remove or direct the removal of the nuisance. 

 
(3) The municipal court may issue necessary orders to enforce an action taken 

by the Code Officer, under this section, pursuant to Tex. Transp. Code Ann. 
§ 683.074. 

 
(4) Once a proceeding for the abatement and removal of the public nuisance 

has commenced under this section, the relocation of a junked vehicle that 
is a public nuisance to another location within the City has no effect on the 
proceeding if the junked vehicle constitutes a public nuisance at the new 
location. 

 
(5) In the event that the City removes a junked vehicle from private or public 

property pursuant to this section, the Code Officer shall provide notice to the 
Texas Department of Transportation, identifying the vehicle or part of the 
vehicle being removed, not later than the fifth day after the date of removal. 

 
(6) A junked vehicle removed pursuant to the provisions of this section may not 

be reconstructed or made operable after removal. 
 

Sec. 14-116. – Notice of nuisance.  
 

The Code Officer shall give not less than 10 days, before an abatement action, 
written notice stating the nature of the public nuisance.  The notice must be personally 
delivered, sent by certified mail with a five-day return requested, or delivered by the United 
States Postal Service with signature confirmation service to: 

 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 4 of 5 

 

(1) the last known registered owner of the nuisance; 
 

(2) each lienholder of record of the nuisance; and 
 

(3)  the owner or occupant of: 
 
a. the property on which the nuisance is located; or 
b. if the nuisance is located on a public right-of-way, the property 

adjacent to the right-of-way. 
 
(4) Any notice requiring the removal of a vehicle or part thereof shall include a 

description of the vehicle and the correct identification number of the 
vehicle, if available at the site. 

 
a. The notice must state: 

 
i. that the nuisance must be abated and removed not 

later than the 10th day after the date on which the 
notice was personally delivered or mailed; and 

 
ii. any request for a hearing before the Municipal Court 

must be made before the 10th day after the date on 
which the notice was personally delivered, or mailed. 

 
iii. If the post office address of the last known registered 

owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be 
placed on the nuisance or, if the owner is located, 
personally delivered. 

 
iv. If notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the 

nuisance shall be continued to a date not earlier than 
the 11th day after the date of the return. 

  
Sec. 14-117. - Hearing in municipal court.  
 

(1) A citation may be issued and a complaint may be filed in the Municipal 
Court of the City of Rosenberg for the violation of maintaining a public 
nuisance, if the nuisance is not removed and abated and a hearing is not 
requested within the ten (10) day period provided in Subsection 14-116. 

   
(2) The Municipal Court Judge shall conduct a hearing pursuant to Texas 

Transportation Code Section 683.075(a)(3), not earlier than the 11th day 
after the date of the service of notice. 

 
(3) At the hearing, the junked motor vehicle is presumed, unless demonstrated 

otherwise by the owner, to be inoperable. 



Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-__ 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
(4) If the information is available at the location of the nuisance, an order 

requiring removal of the nuisance must include the vehicle's: 
 

a. description; 
b. vehicle identification number; and 
c. license plate number. 

 
 

Sec. 14-118. – Disposal of junked vehicles.  
 

(1) A junked vehicle or part thereof may be disposed of by removal to a 
scrapyard, a motor vehicle demolisher, or any suitable site operated by the 
City, for processing as scrap or salvage pursuant to authority provided in 
the Texas Transportation Code, § 683.078 or any successor statute for 
junked vehicle disposal. 

 
(2) Any proceeds from the transfer of the junked vehicle or part thereof to the 

site authorized by this section shall be used to reimburse the city for all 
costs incurred in the notification, investigation, hearing, and disposal 
procedures (including any and all variable towing and disposal fees from 
contracted sources) within this article. Any remaining proceeds shall be 
transferred to the lienholder of record or, if none, the owner of record. 

 
Sec. 14-119. – Effect of act on other laws.  
 

Nothing in this Article shall affect laws that permit immediate removal of a vehicle left 
on public property which constitutes an obstruction to traffic, or laws that establish 
procedures for taking possession of abandoned motor vehicles. 

 
Sec. 14-120. – Removal – With the permission of the owner.  
 

If, within ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the Code Enforcement Officer to 
abate the nuisance as herein provided, the owner of the junked motor vehicle or owner 
or occupant of the premises shall give his written permission to the City for removal of 
the junked motor vehicle from the premises, the giving of such permission shall be 
considered compliance with the provisions of this article. 

 
 
  



PAGE 1 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

CITY OF ROSENBERG
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES

On this the 27th day of January, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Special Workshop Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas.

PRESENT
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor
William Benton Councilor at Large, Position 1
Cynthia McConathy Councilor at Large, Position 2
Jimmie J. Pena Councilor, District 1 
Susan Euton Councilor, District 2
Dwayne Grigar Councilor, District 3
Amanda Barta Councilor, District 4

STAFF PRESENT
Robert Gracia City Manager
Scott M. Tschirhart City Attorney
Linda Cernosek City Secretary
John Maresh Assistant City Manager of Public Services
Jeff Trinker Executive Director of Support Services
Joyce Vasut Executive Director of Administrative Services
Travis Tanner Executive Director of Community Development
Charles Kalkomey City Engineer
Tonya Palmer Building Official
Rose Pickens Inspector
Dallis Warren Police Chief
Wade Goates Fire Chief
Angela Fritz Executive Director of Information Services
Darren McCarthy Parks and Recreation Director
Randall Malik Economic Development Director
Kaye Supak Executive Assistant

During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and 
any consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. 
Public comments are welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments 
will be received at a Workshop Meeting.

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code.

CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

AGENDA

1. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE CITY’S JUNKED VEHICLE REGULATIONS, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been included to allow for discussion regarding the City’s 
junked vehicle regulations.  An excerpt from the City’s Code, Chapter 14, Article VI – Junked 
Vehicles, has been included for your reference.

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 2 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

Key discussion points:
� Councilor Benton gave a brief overview of the item.
� Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney, advised of several options to consider in order to make 

non-compliance more enforceable.
� After discussion by Council, the following recommendations were made:

O Modify definition of junk vehicle to make it more strict and consistent with State 
Transportation Code.

O Reduce 30 days inoperable requirement (on private property) to 15 days.
O Declare a violation of the ordinance as a Class C Misdemeanor.
O Clean up “public view” in Section 14-113 to “visible from a public street” or the 

like.
O Remove Occupied Premise vs. Unoccupied Premise language.
O Include a provision regarding appellate process in Section 14-117 to offset 

finality of disposal of junk vehicle.
O Modify language in Section 14-118 to define that disposal of junk vehicle would 

occur at owner’s expense.
Questions/Comments:

Tonya Palmer, Building Official, addressed the following questions:
Q: What issues are you having to enforce this?
A: There are two components required for definition of junk vehicle: (1) expired inspection 
sticker or registration, and (2) it must be wrecked, dismantled, or inoperable. In many cases, 
someone complains, but upon contact with the property owner, it is proven to be operable 
and so the case is then closed.
Q: Who is the burden of proof on to determine if the vehicle has remained inoperable for 
more than 72 hours?
A: Burden of proof would fall on Code Enforcement, starting with the date of the first 
contact as a result of a complaint being filed.
Q: When the state changes the registration and inspection to one tag, how will this 
ordinance be affected?
A: That is why we need to make it comply with the current Texas Transportation Code
and/or change the restrictions on the definition of a junk vehicle to make it more 
enforceable.
Q: Would reducing 30 days inoperable to 15 days make a difference as well?
A: It would help as far as the time period to enforce it, and get a faster resolution.
� The general consensus of Council was for the City Attorney to a draft ordinance in 

redline fashion, including the suggestions for Council to review at the Regular Council 
Meeting on February 17, 2015.

� No action was taken on the item.

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE FY2015 STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY TREE TRIMMING CONTRACT, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council 
the opportunity to discuss the FY2015 Street Right-of-Way Tree Trimming Contract. Prior to 
FY2010, the Public Works Department budget included sufficient funding to enter into an 
annual tree trimming contract that would generally cover a complete Council District. This 
allowed the City to trim trees throughout the entire City over a four year period.  Prior to the 
FY2010 budget reductions, Council District 4 was the next in line for tree trimming.  

Staff anticipates relatively few changes to the program that was provided until FY2010.  The 
street and tree list will be updated to reflect the current City Council District boundaries, which 
have changed since 2010.

Staff recommends obtaining bids for the FY2015 Street Right-of-Way Tree Trimming Contract as 
described above. The bid proposal would be placed on a future City Council meeting Agenda 
for consideration and award.

reneel
Rectangle



 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 6 

 
Adjournment. 

 


	City Council Workshop Meeting Agenda - 02-24-15
	1 - Comprehensive Plan Interim Briefing
	Resolution No. R-1787 - 08-05-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 08-05-14

	2 - Kilday Development - Campanile at Seabourne Creek Discussion
	Kilday Correspondence - 01-23-15
	Vicinity Map
	Preliminary Site Plan

	3 - Newsletter Discussion
	Presentation - Print Publications
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-30-14

	4 - Fence Ordinance Amendment Discussion
	Proposed Amendment to "Fence" Ordinance 

	5 - Junked Vehicle Ordinance Amendment Discussion
	Exhibit "A" of Proposed Ordinance Amendment - Redlined
	Proposed Ordinance Amendment
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-27-15

	6 - Adjournment



